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PRESS: Ilima Loomis, The Maui News
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .(gavel). . . Aloha. Good evening, everyone. Thank you for
being with us tonight. At this time the Chair would like to call the Planning Committee
meeting to order. Before we begin and just some of the general things again, if you have
any noisemaking devices, if you would kindly turn them in to the silent mode. We'd
appreciate that. My name is Sol Kaho' ohalahala, I'm the Planning Committee Chair. I'd
like to introduce the Members of our Planning Committee. I'll start from my far right,
Member Michael Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Next to him, Member Michael Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: And then Member Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hi, everybody.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Wayne Nishiki, and then to my left, Member Bill
Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good evening.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: And next to him is Member Joseph Pontanilla who is a
Non-Voting Member and we appreciate his attendance tonight, thank you. And the only
other person that's not with us, and doing other things today and this evening, the
Council Chair Danny Mateo, who's not a Voting Member on this Committee. So, if I
may go across the table here and introduce the other members of tonight's meeting that
are from the Department of Corporation Counsel, I'd like to acknowledge Michael
Hopper, Deputy Corporation Counsel. Aloha, Michael. And from the Department of
Planning, Director Jeff Hunt, okay. And next to him to his right is John Summers who is
the Program Planning Administrator for Long Range Division. Okay, John. And next to
him is David Michaelson who's a Planner for Long Range Division. Our Staff,
Mr. David Raatz is our Legislative Attorney and then next to him would be Carla Nakata
who's--oh, you, you're giving us a hand tonight? Thank you, Carla, for being here
tonight. She's also a Legislative Staff Attorney. And then our Committee Secretary
Clarita Balala. How about a big hand for her.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. So we'll begin with public testimony in a few
moments. Before we start if you have not already signed up and would like to testify,
please come to the table here and see Clarita to sign up. Testimonies will be limited to
three minutes. Okay. You're requested when you come up to the mic to state your name,
for the record, and then who you represent.

ITEM NO. 2

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE (C.C. No. 07-54)

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So with that, then the Chair would like to begin by introducing
the item that's before us and this is PC-2 and it's the General Plan Update. As
established by Chapter 2.80B of the Maui County Code, the first part of the County's
decentennial [sic] General Plan Update is the Countywide Policy Plan. The Planning
Committee finished its work on that document late last year, and the full Council is
scheduled to act on a bill adopting the Countywide Policy Plan tomorrow at 9:00 a.m. at
the Council Chambers. The next task of the Planning Committee is to review the draft
Maui Island Plan, the document that follows the Countywide Policy Plan in the General
Plan update, pursuant to Chapter 2.80B. The Planning Director transmitted the Maui
Island Plan, with comments and recommendations from the Maui General Plan Advisory
Committee and the Maui Planning Commission on October 16th of this, of last year. In
addition the Planning Director submitted a binder last month that is referenced on
tonight's agenda as the draft Consolidated Maui Island Plan...let me pull mine up...okay.
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The Council needs to enact the Maui Island Plan by ordinance, by October 18 th of 2010.
Tonight's meeting provides an opportunity for the Department of Planning to give the
Committee an overview of the draft Maui Island Plan, for the Kihei-Makena community
No legislative actions will be taken tonight. Chapter 2.8B [sic] establishes five
mandatory components of the Maui Island Plan: one, an island-wide land use strategy;
two, a water element; three, a nearshore ecosystem element; four, an implementation
program; and five, milestones. The Planning Committee is accepting testimony
throughout Maui this month with the intention of starting to take votes next month.
Before I ask the Planning Department to present an overview of the draft Maui Island
Plan for the Kihei Makena community, I will accept public testimony. So, so, at this time
then the Chair would like to begin with public testimony, and if I can start with Eve
Clute, to be followed by Irene Bowie.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MS. CLUTE: Start? My name is Eve Clute and I am a doctor of public health. I am speaking
on my own behalf. According to the draft Maui Island Plan the total of new houses
already approved in South Maui is 6,200 units, and adds almost 20,000 more people to
South Maui. In addition to that the Maui Island Plan is recommending about 8,000 more
units to be built. A total build-out would add approximately 15,000 new units and add
about 45,000 more people to South Maui. The internal roads within South Maui are
already overcrowded. Adding an additional 40,000 cars will create more congestion.
People in Lahaina, like me, who drive to the other side, will be caught in long lines of
traffic, with potentials for more car crashes. Please do not let this to continue on Maui.
More developments will add millions of gallons of sewage to the Kihei Sewage
Treatment Facility. Pollutants are entering the ocean from three Kihei injection wells.
Darla White, U.H. coral reef researcher and diver, who is working underwater at Kahekili
Beach Park in Kaanapali, testified in Lahaina that she has had MRSA seven times and
that her fellow researchers are getting sick after being in the ocean where sewage seeps
were identified. MRSA is a type of staff infection that is resistant to several antibiotics
such as penicillin. A September 2009 letter from the County summarized that the
Lahaina Wastewater Facility cannot meet EPA standards for R-1 treated water, and at the
same time provide the 1 2 million gallons of sewage capacity that developers need to
build their projects. Will the Kihei Sewage Treatment Facility have the capacity to treat
all the injected wastewater to R-1 levels? And for how long? For 20 years, 30 years?
We know the Lahaina facility built in 1985, 25 years ago, cannot meet the current
capacity requirements. Please do not let that happen in South Maui. For each developer
to build their own sewage treatment facility would add hundreds of thousands of dollars
to the cost of the homes. That is one reason why developers cannot provide the number
of affordable houses that our County needs. Affordable housing of $260,000 to $500,000
depends on million-dollar homes to be sold. How many people will buy million-dollar
homes in South Maui? People cannot sell their three-to-four bedroom homes with
swimming pools and lush gardens in Kaanapali, Kapalua, and Wailea for that amount.
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And where will the drinking water for those homes come from? The water source for
Kihei is part of Na Wai Eha which is in dispute as to how much water will be available -MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. CLUTE: --for the developments. Do I get one more? One more to finish?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: You can conclude in a minute.
MS. CLUTE: A decision by the Water Commission is expected this summer. It is estimated that
an additional 8 million gallons a day of drinking water will be needed for South Maui
developments. How much taxes will be needed to cover those costs? It has been
suggested to use community facility districts to pay for sewage water improvements
upfront. This would require the County to hold a bond. The cost is then passed on to the
homeowner in the form of annual fees; however, if the homes do not sell the developer
must pay the fees on each unsold property. Some developers have gone bankrupt on the
mainland when using the community facility districts, others simply refuse to pay. The
risk is that the County as the bond holder may end up owning properties with lapsed
entitlements and incomplete infrastructure.
MR. RAATZ: Four minutes.
MS. CLUTE: Please do not let this happen on Maui.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Okay, seeing none, thank you. Irene Bowie followed by Thomas Croly.
MS. BOWIE: Aloha, Chair and Council Members. My name is Irene Bowie; I'm Executive
Director with Maui Tomorrow Foundation. Maui Tomorrow Foundation supports smart
growth principles and asks that they be considered as a guiding factor in the Maui Island
Plan. By encouraging development in existing communities, residents of those
communities benefit from a closer proximity to jobs and services. By encouraging this
type of development all of our community benefits from a stronger tax base, increased
efficiency of already developed land and infrastructure, reduced development pressure in
edge areas, and preservation of more open space, and in some cases the strengthening of
rural communities. Maui Tomorrow supports the Planning Department's urban growth
boundaries and believes that the Maui Island Plan should provide an affordable
workforce housing in urban areas where infrastructure is already in place. Place
developments near jobs, water, fire and police stations, adequate waste and sewage
treatment facilities, roads and schools. And lessen impacts on cultural and environmental
resources. Regarding North Kihei, we support the Director's decision not to permit
1,100-unit housing project at Maalaea Mauka for the reasons cited above. In South Maui
we would also like to point out that all Makena Resort lands south of the golf course,
about 150 acres are shown on GPAC, Planning Commission and the Planning Director's
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maps as open space. We ask the Council to support this designation and we're
particularly concerned about the very southernmost 103 acres of the resort. As members
of the Oneloa Coalition, we also hope that that area might one day become a conservation
reserve, adjacent to Makena State Park. Preserving this as a wilderness area with hiking
trails and preserved cultural sites will benefit the public. Development in that
southernmost area would create runoff that would very negatively affect the reef and
nearshore waters at Makena. In conclusion, we ask the Council to join with the public in
support of a strong Maui Island Plan with clear, specific policy language, consistent with
GPAC and the Planning Department's guiding principles, and compliant with best
planning practices. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Irene. Members, questions? Okay, seeing none,
thank you, Irene. Thomas Croly, to be followed by Bill Mitchell.
MR. CROLY: Aloha, I'm Thomas Croly, and today I'm speaking on behalf of the Maui
Vacation Rental Association. The Maui Vacation Rental Association appreciates the
opportunity to participate in the development of our General Plan. We hope that the
General Plan will be general enough to allow for the existence of permitted bed and
breakfasts and transient vacation rentals in appropriate areas throughout the islands. We
support the objective in the land use section that seeks to manage the impacts of tourism
on the residents' quality of life by managing transient vacation rentals through a
permitting process. We appreciate that this recognition recognizes that the discussion on
this has not taken place yet and that there is room in the General Plan for that discussion
to take place and for that permitting process to, to be formed. We do have some concerns
with several of the policies and objectives in the economic development section. Many
of these policies really do not support economic development. And they should either be
deleted or included in the land use or housing sections, specifically policies 4.2.2a, b, d
and e. These policies are limiting policies whose objectives should be supported in the
sections that they intend to support. Specifically we would like to ask that the section
4.2.2e be deleted or changed to read, minimize the impacts on long-term rental housing
for the, minimize the impacts on long-term rental housing by the conversion of, for the
conversion of the island's resident housing stock to TVR use by establishing a permitting
process for TVR use and capping the number, that number of permits issued. Bed and
breakfasts and transient vacation rentals are part of a healthy visitor industry.
Accommodations in this plan must be made to manage the existence of both. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Tom. Members, questions? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you. Bill Mitchell followed by John Kerr.
MR. MITCHELL: Good evening, Mr. Chair and Members of the Council. Do you have the
handout dated January 25' in regard to the 86-acre Puunene project from Chris Hart &
Partners? It's has four exhibits in the back of that. If you could find that.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead then, proceed.
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MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. My name is Bill Mitchell; I'm with Chris Hart & Partners, here
representing Pacific Rim Land. On behalf of Pacific Rim Land we are requesting that the
subject parcel be included within the proposed Urban Growth Boundary for the 2030
Maui Island Plan. The subject parcel encompasses approximately 86 acres and is situated
to the east of the Mokulele Highway, adjacent to the Old Puunene Airport. Pacific Rim
Land would like to develop the subject parcel for light and/or heavy industrial uses in the
future. While business uses are allowed under Industrial zoning, the parcel would be
utilized solely for light and heavy industrial activities. The parcel would be subdivided to
create fee simple lots for various industrial-type activities, including a 20-acre site for the
construction of a materials recycling facility. You can see that on exhibits three and four,
shows the site plan. This facility would cause the reduction of approximately 70 percent
of the construction and demolition materials waste in Maui County from being disposed
in the County landfill. On the island of Maui, Light Industrial-zoned lands occupy
approximately 500 acres at various locales in Wailuku, Kahului, Kihei and Lahaina. But
since businesses use, uses are allowed under Light and Heavy Industrial zoning,
commercial activities are major land use in these areas. So when considering the limited
supply of land that is available solely for Light and Heavy Industrial uses and given the
past, present, and proposed uses of lands within and around the Old Puunene Airport and
its location next to the proposed Urban Growth Boundary of the project, that's Project
District 10, the subject parcel is strategically positioned and located to accommodate
future urban growth given its proximity and present and proposed urban-type
development. It's a unique parcel in that it is sandwiched between the Old Puunene
Airport, which if you're familiar with it is part of Project District 10 which has industrial
and recreational uses already slated for it. And on the other side, the east side is the
Hawaiian Cement Plant. The exciting thing about this particular project is these will be
fee simple lots for Light and Heavy Industrial use, something that there is not a lot of
availability in Maui County right now. And the developer is serious about putting
together a construction waste and demolition waste recycling center and looking at the
County's current Solid Waste Management Plan, this would fall into the programs for
dealing with future solid waste as the DeCoite Landfill is phased out the next three to
four years, they think. So, it's an opportunity for and a great location for dealing with
solid waste in the future of Maui County. I'd be happy to take any questions?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you. Members, any questions? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Mitchell, for being here this evening. The parcel
that you're looking at, Pacific Rim owns the land?
MR. MITCHELL: No. They're, they're under contract with A&B They have not closed on the
parcel yet. They are under contract to purchase that from A& B.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And how are you situated in regards to the proposed new prison
facility?
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MR. MITCHELL: In Project District 10? The last I heard, I don't know that prison's going
forward. I don't know if that's correct or not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It may.
MR. MITCHELL: It may.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And it's scheduled to be or proposed to be right close to where
that Maui Raceway Park is.
MR. MITCHELL: And, and if it is, if you'll notice on exhibit four, excuse me, exhibit three, we
have provided an open space and green space buffer between Project District 10 and our
proposed site both twofold, for visual and aesthetic purposes, but secondly it would be a,
it would be a drainage and retention swale that would function for the entire parcel.
Rather than having individual landowners or parcel owners have to deal with their
retention and stormwater on-site, this would be a master system that would deal with the
entire project.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. MITCHELL: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions, Members? Okay, seeing none, thank
you, Bill.
MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: John Kerr, to be followed by Bryan Sarasin.
MR. KERR: Mr. Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission. Sorry about that. My
name is John Kerr and I am the owner of Windward Construction. I'm here to testify in
favor of the Ohana Kai Subdivision, as proposed by Jesse Spencer, in the Maalaea Mauka
area. Windward Construction, we're a union contractor and we've been doing business
in Maui for about 23 years. We're a drywall, painting, and finish carpentry business,
have been working with Spencer Homes for about 14 years. Normally we employ about
200 tradesmen, local tradesmen, but because the economic slowdown our business has
seen about a 75 percent decrease in employment. We have basically laid off the main
breadwinners for approximately 150 local families. I have personally known Jesse and
Mark Spencer even before I started working with them as a subcontractor. The Spencers
have dedicated their lives in providing good-quality affordable housing to the local
families of Maui. They also have been intensely loyal to the local contractors, so for
every house they build they are providing employment opportunities for the people who
call Maui home. Everyone is well aware of the downturn in the local, State, and national
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economy. This is particularly true in the construction trades. With the drastic decrease in
employment on Maui comes an equally drastic increase in foreclosure rates, downward
pressure on real estate values, and less foot traffic in the furniture stores, surf shops, and
the local malls. Unless we can get some of our people back to work, every sector of the
economy is going to continue to suffer. Get people back to work and everything else
falls into line. Home and condo values stabilize, local businesses start to rehire, and the
tax base for the State and the County is expanded. The local economy is really hurting. I
don't need to tell everybody that. Maui needs this project. The local families on Maui
need this project. And I urge the Planning Commission to approve this project. Let's put
the people back to Maui, let's put the people on Maui back to work. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, John. Any questions for the testifier?
Okay, seeing none, thank you. Bryan Sarasin, to be followed by Ed Thompson.
MR. SARASIN: Good evening. My name is Bryan Sarasin, I'm from Waihee. I'm speaking as
an individual. The problem that really is in here is the fast track process. The County
Council and the County of Maui in particular has spent thousands, hundreds of
thousands, millions, I don't know how much money they've spent on this process. A
developer comes in, does the fast track process, they don't go to the community, they just
come in, they get the process done, and the community suffers. The community has no
input. Examples of this is Waiehu Kou I through W, Hale Mua, David Goode, the
Betsills, Lokahi Pacific, now 150 units in Living Waters. You know, I was asked at the
last meeting in Pukalani to offer a solution. The only solution after talking to a bunch of
people was the fact that the possible solution is to ask the Legislature in your legislative
package, that you folks submit every year to the Legislature on Oahu. In that packet or
amend the packet or whatever you need to do to either abolish this process or to make the
process in such a way that the community is involved and the community embraces the
process. Don't let the fast track come in, throw it down everybody's throats, and you
know what, folks, you guys gotta live with it. They're giving them water, the roads are
insufficient in our area--I'm only speaking about Waihee area for now. But it's very
frustrating for us when we have all this thrown down our throats and we have no say.
Then they come in after the fact and say, oh well, you know, sorry we didn't come and
approach you guys. That's pretty much what I had to say today. And I would really
appreciate if the Council could move in that direction or at least submit something to, in
your packet, whether it can be revised or whatever it is, I'm not sure of that process to at
least give the community, you know, input. All these plans that you're spending all this
money on, and then the fast track comes in, is it fair? I don't think so. But that's just my
opinion. The plan should be as it's proposed, you know, the family subdivision should be
exempt, as long as it's small and not big, big units. So all I'm doing is I'm trying to look
out for the little guy, I'm trying to look out for the country towns, which we are. And
that's really all I have to say. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you, Bryan. Members, questions? Okay. Seeing none,
thank you.
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MR. SARASIN: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Ed Thompson followed by Jesse Spencer.
MR. THOMPSON: Good evening, Chair Kaho'ohalahala and Members of the Planning
Committee. My name is Ed Thompson representing the American Resort Development
Association, the Hawaii Chapter (ARDA-Hawaii), the local chapter of the National
Timeshare Trade Association. Hawaii's timeshare industry currently accounts for
10 percent of the State's lodging inventory with about 7,700 timeshare units, of which
2,998 units are located on Maui. We had one of our members who were going to, they
were going to plan to be here tonight but I think something had come up so she couldn't
come from the Maui Schooner, Nancy Geist and one of her employees, but we did submit
testimony on their behalf, so it's here. ARDA-Hawaii is concerned with negative policy
statements in the draft Maui Island Plan, regarding timeshare conversions and ownership.
We are concerned that only one type of transient use, timeshare, is recommended to be
discouraged. As you may know, timeshare has been a stabilizing force for Maui's
hospitality, hospitality industry during the current economic downturn. While Maui
hotels were facing 55 to 65 percent occupancy during 2009, Maui timeshare occupancy
averaged over 80 to 85 percent. This has led to stable jobs for Maui's 1,800 timeshare
employees with wages over $69,000,000, and approximately 17,000,000 in tax revenue
for Maui County. ARDA is confident that the Planning Committee will consider all sides
when it comes to important issues affecting growth, historic and cultural preservation,
land use, and the industries that make our island lifestyle vibrant and viable. We are
hopeful that the Committee will take into consideration the opinions of many people in
the community who were not invited to put, to provide input during the hearing process
for the MIP. We are also hopeful that the Committee will be receptive to a variety of
ideas and opinions to provide a balanced roadmap for Maui's people. We look forward
to working with the Committee to develop compromised language regarding timeshare
that will have long-term benefits for Maui County. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Ed. Members, any questions? Okay,
Member Pontanilla, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Thompson, in regards to
your last statement about working with this Committee in trying to draft out language as
not to, I guess destroy, not destroy, but hamper your type of accommodation, do you have
anything that...or any recommendation that you can make to the Committee?
MR. THOMPSON: Yeah. There's, there's a section, offhand I can't quote that, what section
number. But there's a statement in there that says that you want to discourage
conversions to, for timeshare. And if we can find some other language, instead of using
the word discourage, maybe monitor or something like that where in the future if, and
what most people are saying is, many of the new or the future development in the
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hospitality industry will be a combination of timeshare and, and hotel rooms, that you
don't hamper that process or, or hurt the industry by trying to develop when that's
something that will help the industry.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. If you could provide us some written statement
on that?
MR. THOMPSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And the reason why I ask you this question is that,
you're the highest, highest tax rate payer -MR. THOMPSON: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --for this Maui County. So thank you.
MR. THOMPSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other questions? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. And thank you, Mr. Thompson, for being here. I think that
what you're mentioning probably deserves another look. It's my understanding that
while the visitor industry in general has been much less than it has been in the past, that
you have experienced something different this year?
MR. THOMPSON: Yes. We've actually, because of the nature of the business where people
have bought time to come, we have found that the people are exercising their use of their
units. So they are coming and the occupancy has been very high. Although sales might
be down, sales of units might be down, the people who have bought time to come to
Maui; they are coming, which is, which is actually helping the County.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it sounds to me like, you know, we hear the comment that if
the tourist industry is so far down, why are the planes jam packed? Are you trying to tell
us that they're probably in a timeshare or in a vacation rental?
MR. THOMPSON: Just to use an example, our, our President was in town a couple of weeks
ago and he was flying in from the East Coast. He flew in from, I think the new US
Airlines has a Charlotte, Charlotte direct flight to Hawaii, and he said that although the
plane itself was maybe a half to three-quarter full, he talked to some of the folks there and
the ones that he talked too, all of about the majority of them said that they were going to
stay at their timeshare. They had either exchanged with someone else, they might have a
timeshare out in the Carolinas, but they had saved up their time to exchange with
someone else to come to Hawaii. So because there's timeshares all over the country
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these folks can utilize the exchange method through timeshare to, to come, to come to
Hawaii, and so many of those folks in the plane were going to visit their timeshare.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, it may be that we need to give timeshares another look.
You know, they've always been looked upon as really not a very good thing to have. But
in light of our economy and what you can show us now that people come regardless
. . . (change tape, start 1B). . . of the economy being down because they already own the
place. It's kind of like they only come here and have to rent a car and, and buy groceries
or go out to dinner or whatever it is they do. At least they come.
MR. THOMPSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And, and they keep people working. So we probably need to
take another look at this.
MR. THOMPSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And I agree with Member Pontanilla, it would be helpful if you
could help us by developing some language.
MR. THOMPSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MR. THOMPSON: Thank you. We will.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions, Members? I just have one question then.
Following up on Member Baisa's concern about who's actually coming here, in your
testimony you said, and you made comparison of the percentage of occupancy, and you
said that the timeshares had an 80 to 85 percent versus the hotels. My only question to
you is that, when you present that kind of statistics to this body who are looking at
long-term planning, what is your, your message?
MR. THOMPSON: The, the message?
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MR. THOMPSON: The message is that the, the owners, the people who own timeshares, they
are coming, so what we're trying to say is, let's not try to hamper or to, to, to hurt a
segment of the visitor industry or the hospitality industry that's actually working. It's an
option that people are looking for today, unlike in previous years. This is sort of a new, a
new concept and it's building and it's gaining support. So let's not, you know, let's not
hurt the industry by putting statements within the MIP to discourage it, but maybe to, you
can say something along the lines of maybe monitor the industry and check, make sure
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that everything is working fine and have the industry work with, with the County to make
it something that is beneficial for all of us.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. One more.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Thompson, is your occupancy rate, the
totals, is it combined with the hotel industry?
MR. THOMPSON: No. This, these figures that we have are separate from the, from the -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Separate.
MR. THOMPSON: --hotel industry. Yes. So, we, we're currently working with Joe Toy and
Hospitality Advisors LLC, to come up with a new study to update the figures that, that
occurred last year and in 2008. And when we have that, those figures which will
highlight what timeshare occupancy was, what hotel occupancy was, we can share that
with the, with the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Hopefully there is a way to combine both numbers so
that at least we get a true number in regards to the number of visitors coming to Hawaii.
So, thank you.
MR. THOMPSON: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you,
Ed?
MR. THOMPSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Jesse Spencer, followed by George, is it Rixey?
MR. SPENCER: Okay. I'm Jesse Spencer, and I'm representing Ohana Kai Village, and it will
be a complete village. And I want to thank the group out in front of me, the Council
people, because I've had a chance to meet with all of you either at Council level or
socially or one thing or the other. And I know that they do represent the people on Maui,
and for that reason I feel that they can recognize the values of the proposed project that
we're getting ready to do. I think we have a track record, Waikapu Gardens, when we
took that through four years ago, we had a unanimous vote nine-zero with the Council.
And I think that the, the project itself, you can take part of the credit, because it is truly
workforce housing, it is a community, and so we hope to do that and even better. One of
the comments earlier said something about that...oh, the fast track, that, you know, the
community doesn't have a chance for input. Our environmental impact statement, which
we were required to do, is around two years in the making. There's 50-some odd
agencies that we answer to. They examine our answers and so then they go back and

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 25, 2010
Kihei Community Center, Main Hall

forth and so we're, we have submitted the final draft. Each of the Council people have a
copy of that draft and I'm sure that the Planning Department has a copy of that draft.
And so we have addressed, I think, all of the concerns properly and . . .(inaudible). . .
people, they'll say well it has no infrastructure. And so we are providing, we have wells
to provide adequate water. We will be building a waste treatment plant that is state of the
art. We will be improving the runoff from the mountain with linear retention basins. We
will be providing parks. We will be providing a shopping complex with stores that are
amenities just to that project. And so I don't know just why there's as much opposition
as there is, but I do welcome the chance to address the Council, because in, in addressing
the GPAC on a project of this scale, the panel that I was giving the testimony to, they
were not allowed to ask questions. And so many times on various items...
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. SPENCER: Anyway you have to ask questions and give me a chance, you know, to give
you the answers best I can. And one last thing, all I've heard this last two or three years
has been affordable housing, employment, workforce housing. We are supplying all
three of these things. Now that we've got a lot of government stimulus plans, this project
built out over a seven-year period will be approximately $500 million. And so you would
take that as reused within the economy. I feel like that employment is number one,
affordable housing number two, and getting the job done in a timely fashion. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Spencer. Any questions, Members? Okay.
Seeing none, thank you.
MR. SPENCER: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: George Rixey followed by Myrna Stone.
MR. RIXEY: Aloha kakou. My names George Rixey and I live in Kihei. I'm an architect and
I've been involved in planning my whole career, so about 30 years, on the mainland and
also here on Maui. Done a lot of work with Kihei Community Association, helping them
start their planning committee. A lot of work with Wailuku Main Street. Worked as a
consultant with a lot of planners on the island and with the County as well. And through
all that, workshops and going out, outreach projects with the community and everything,
to me what I hear an overwhelming vision for what we want to see Maui is small towns,
walkable communities, pedestrian friendly, ohana, distinct, separated, they have their
own character, separated with open space, just like, like we see. What we're opposed to,
what I see here generally is sprawl and the merging, large urban areas, and the merging of
towns together. Okay, so it's because of those reasons and that vision that I am strongly
in support of a development such as proposed at Olowalu and opposed to expansion of
development as is proposed for Kihei. The, at Olowalu, it seems to me that it fits that
principle to a "T". And they've gone out, I've, the way I see it is, is they've gone out to
hire the best people in the business to create the best possible example that we can see for
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that type of community, so I'm in favor of that. It's comprehensive, it allows for
variation but it has distinct guidelines. Here in Kihei, and like many other towns that we
have, we don't have a comprehensive plan, and we do not have distinct guidelines. We
all know like from the beginning, Kihei just started out linear sprawl, and in our Kihei
Community Plan it says very strongly that we want to create a pedestrian friendly
community and create distinct, four distinct separate commercial neighborhoods, try to
create a little towns that are individual and separate from the others. That's critical. So
when I'm looking at the proposals of expanding Kihei by twice that size, and we still
don't have control over what's going on already, it's, you know, doesn't work for me.
When I see that that expansion is divided by a highway right down the middle, Piilani
Highway, you know, from my perspective that's a planning design, you know, set for
disaster. It's just not, just not a good idea. I could see it moving out as fingers of
expansion, you know, that that help break the linearity, but when we just double it on the
mauka side we're just book-matching the linearity separating by highway. So...
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. RIXEY: So I have some other things that I'd like to, to share with respect to Kihei and also
with respect to, you know, the criteria for determining where we want to build with
respect to roads and, you know, in-place infrastructure. And if I could come back later,
could I do that again at the end?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Your, this is your time. So...
MR. RIXEY: Okay. Well, then I'll just finish up by saying that -CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MR. RIXEY: --I know that there is a lot of reasons in place for why we would want to expand
Kihei and why not do something at Olowalu, and a lot of that has to do with
infrastructures that are in place. And I don't really see that as a justified cause because
the infrastructures are not in place. The infrastructures are no more in place in Kihei to
provide for that type of expansion than they are in Olowalu, which doesn't even exist yet.
So, that, I have a hard time with that one.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, George.
MR. RIXEY: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any questions? Okay. Seeing none, then thank you.
MR. RIXEY: Thanks.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Myrna Stone followed by Thomas Cook.
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MS. STONE: Good evening. I'm not talking about Kihei-Makena, I'm moving Upcountry
toward Makawao. Good evening, ladies and gentlemen and Council Members. My name
is Myrna Stone and Maui has been my home for, since 1981. I am an active community
volunteer, has served as an editor of Real Estate Maui Style Magazine for 15 years, and
now find myself sliding into my senior citizen golden year status. I love Maui and I love
living here. I celebrated my 69 th birthday speaking in favor of this project in September
up in Pukalani. I'm winded. Since that time the more I have learned about this project,
it's brought me back here tonight to again lend my support to the progressive senior
community of Piiholo South in Makawao. I am sure you have read all the literature of
this well-planned proposed community The idea of building community with Hale
Mahaolu as per Executive Director Roy Katsuda's letter of recommendation is very
appealing. The idea of active retirement living is on the minds of many of us seniors who
still live active lives. We're also looking to the future, for our needs will change. We
want to live in a community of like-minded people where we can expand not detract,
where we can continue to contribute and at the same time know that we are secure in our
senior years. I would like to see the 60 acre parcel placed into the General Plan in order
for seniors to have a choice. I truly believe it will offer the greater good for the greater
number of people. There is no housing or plans for senior housing on this island that will
accommodate us. We have a crisis on Maui if this is not addressed now. By placing
Piiholo South on the growth plan it will serve as an essential step in the County of Maui
acknowledging the need for senior community for us, and I urge this Committee to do
whatever is necessary in your, whatever is in your power to make this happen. I thank
you for all of your time that you contribute to make our Maui home, home. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Myrna. Members, any questions? Seeing none,
Thomas Cook, followed by Michael Summers.
MR. COOK: Good evening, Chairman, Council Members. My name is Thomas Cook. Thank
you for coming out this evening and working overtime. Whoa, I miss the podium. I
came the first time, I come with a bunch of written material and there's no podium. I
wanted; this was the front page of The Maui News recently. I know it was a quote I
believe of the County Council's concern about affordable housing and considering
modifying the Affordable Housing Ordinance and rules. As many of you know I've been
involved quite extensively for several years now in the affordable housing issue. I'm a
general contractor by profession, a carpenter by trade, grandfather and a father, a
husband. I'm here as an individual this evening. I am, was also a member of the GPAC
and I have a tremendous amount of respect for the Planning Department. We don't agree
on everything, but there is a sincere respect, these people are working very hard. I
wanted to—I'll send you guys some stuff but basically it was Hawaii Business, the most
recent issue about smart growth and some of the issue, and talking about the transition. I
want to point out, this is a great idea. Okay. It's like ten years old. Okay. And some of
the issues that I read that I've understood or quoted is the cost of sprawl. Okay. Well,
we don't have that in Hawaii because the government doesn't supply any infrastructure to
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speak of. Okay. That's maybe an over-generalization, but generally speaking the
burden, and that's from another one of these magazines, it's actually is an interview and
Micah Kane's quote was that, you know the government, in his opinion, the State of
Hawaii had made an error years ago when they elected to shift the burden of all
infrastructure development to the private sector. And as a result, got news for you guys,
if we don't have development, we don't have an expansion of infrastructure. So that's
kind of a big bind, and it's a huge transition to make it to be publicly funded
infrastructure. So I know I don't have much time, so I'm going to get to a couple of
things real quick. My biggest beef with the General Plan is when Bill 84 was heard, time
was one of the big things, and that's one of the few things I'm going to quote here.
Establish a deadline for completion. Okay. They failed miserably in that. This plan
hopefully in a year after your review will be approved, then we have to go to the
community plans. We will not have the document that we, you know, we agreed and
united and so let's do this, this is good. I am an advocate of urban growth boundaries. I
am an advocate of a plan and I think that this plan has a lot of merit. I think that Jesse
Spencer's project, which is currently in the General Plan, it's not the -MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. COOK: --proposed plan. It's not in the proposed plan. It's in the old plan that's, I think is
the law. I don't know, I'm not real akamai about totally all this stuff, but if we want
people to respect this proposed plan in the future, for us to totally negate and disregard
the existing plan--and don't get me started on the letter that came from the GPAC that
didn't have any legal binding status. But so anyway we have a developer that's a
family-based company that has the capacity to provide virtually all affordable housing,
with no public funding, in a time of acute economic crisis, with a proven track record.
Okay. I have so much respect for his wife how she can stand this guy, I can't, I don't
know. He is a force to be reckoned with. I have a tremendous amount of respect and
that's the thing. If someone is
MR. RAATZ: Four minutes.
MR. COOK: --handing it to you we need to, hopefully we can be flexible and modify and tweak
transit oriented development, TOD. Okay. It's at the crossroads. It's not that bad a
place, single family residence. I'll leave you with this. I lived on four acres in
Kaupakalua for 30 years, raised my kids. The last three years I've lived in a townhouse,
two different areas. Great for someone my age, great for singles, lousy for families.
When we started the GPAC, I didn't have that experience. I thought townhouses was
density urban. This is Maui. We need neighborhoods with . . .(inaudible). . . I see.
Okay. Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. You gotta, you gotta, you gotta conclude.
AUDIENCE: . . .(Laughter). . .
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CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: You were at four minutes ...several minutes ago.
MR. COOK: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you. Are there any questions? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Mr. Cook, for being here. You had started to
kind of explain that you had a change of heart during the process. Can you finish that?
I'd like to hear what you were about to say.
MR. COOK: Briefly I, I, I really like the concept of in-fill and the urbanization of some of the
country area—the, the towns. But I think that we're really missing out if we don't take
into account . . . (inaudible). . . and 'cause this is a small island and we're not going to get
super overpopulated. So the "sprawl" is going to be somewhat limited. I, I think we
need a lot more single family residences now than I thought we did before.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So if I'm understanding you correctly, there's a theme going
through the General Plan to try to have higher density, more concentrated in certain areas
of Maui, and almost no growth in other, in some other areas like the one I represent.
You're beginning to think maybe that's not a cool idea?
MR. COOK: Yeah. I think it just needs to be, my two cents, is it needs to be less constraint. I
like the urban growth boundaries. I would like it to be less constrained. Just sort of
. . . (breaths out air). . . and not so tight.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What you're trying to tell me is not everybody wants to live in a
townhouse or an apartment.
MR. COOK: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.
Michael Summers, followed by Lucienne deNaie.
MR. M. SUMMERS: Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council, thank you for allowing me to be
here today. My name is Mike Summers and I'm a land planner with Chris Hart &
Partners, and I'm here on behalf of Maui Research and Technology Park Partners. And I
just want to again say we appreciate being allowed to be a part of the Maui Island Plan
update process. You should have all received letters from us of testimony, and with that
testimony you'll find some attachments that show some conceptual plans for the Maui
Research and Technology Park. The Partners are currently in the process of updating
their master plan basically to, to set forth a new direction for the park, and so I'll just take
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a few minutes and read through some testimony that we've prepared. As you may be
aware, development activity at the park has been much slower than kind of initially
expected when the park was originally envisioned in the early 1980s, and there are a lot
of reasons for this. Primarily, you know, the park, Maui just from a location perspective
is challenging in the context of attracting research and technology industry to Maui. We
have a limited supply of affordable housing. The standards within the park itself are
pretty restrictive, it makes development at the park expensive. So there are a lot of
different factors which have made development at the park slower than what was initially
expected. Today the park has approximately 20 businesses, representing about 175,000
square feet, and 400 employees at the park. And that's not an, kind of an inconsequential
number of employees, it's quite a lot when you think of 400 employees. But in the
context of 20 years, it was hoped that there would be a lot more employment at the park.
The Partners have come to the conclusion that in order to, to really make the park more
successful to allow it to develop to its full potential, a new vision is necessary. And
essentially there was a lot of work done in the last couple of years visiting parks on the
mainland and elsewhere in the United States, looking at the most successful parks. And
what they found is that the more successful parks have a lot of flexibility so that small
firms as well as larger firms, more capitalized firms can be attracted to the park. The
development costs are generally less intensive so the firms without a lot of cash can get
into the park and grow their businesses with their enterprises, and move on to the larger
building footprints. They've also learned that, you know, for, for technology companies
and other companies to be successful they need affordable housing. It's, it's very
convenient, it creates a better sense of place when you have retail and professional
services to, to service the businesses and the employees. So essentially that's the new
direction that they would like to take forward...
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. M. SUMMERS: Three minutes. Wow. Okay. Anyway, yeah, we are going through this
master plan process. The Maui Island Plan does support the vision proposed of a, of a
new town at the Maui Research and Technology Park. And we believe that this is really
the best vision for the park moving forward. With that if you have any questions, I'd be
more than happy to take them.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Mike. Any questions? Members? Okay.
Seeing none, thank you. Lucienne deNaie, followed by Bud Pikrone.
MS. deNAIE: Good evening, all. Lucienne deNaie, testifying on behalf of Sierra Club Maui.
Just want to point out Sierra Club has been tracking land use planning here for, gosh,
almost 40 years, since 1976, so we've seen a lot things come and go and we realize that
this is a very important decision that you guys are doing, working with the Maui Island
Plan, very big responsibility. We also realize because we've been tracking things for a
long time that 40 years ago some other big decisions were made. It was at that time that
the Maalaea shoreline was zoned for high density even though no sewage capacity was
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available. Well, we have the density there, we still have problems with the sewage
capacity, so sometimes I think we really need to think ahead even though things seem
like a good idea, it's always good to rethink them. And this is one of these times when
you can rethink some of the decisions that were made 40 years ago, 20 years ago.
Another decision that was made 40 years ago about an area that few had visited and little
was known about was the remote area of South Maui, from Keawakapu to the Kinau lava
flow, and this is the area we now know as Wailea and Makena. It was seen at that time as
a place that, you know, nobody really went, a few fishermen, really if it could make some
money that was great. And so it was set aside for golf courses, hotels, high density
luxury housing, and so forth. But even though folks 40 years ago thought they knew
best, they only knew kind of part of things. We realize now that it's hard to get water
there, it's hard to get services there, and that it's an area that is immensely valuable for
some things that we really didn't think about then like tourists liking to go to a very
pristine wilderness type beach, like our wildlife having one last place where they can
come and hatch the little endangered turtles, and so forth and so on. So you're going to
see, and I'm going to make copies of these and pass them out to you, but I didn't come
prepared tonight, but you're going to see that there's three maps for the most sensitive
area of South Maui, that's your S3 Map. And all these maps agree on one thing, they do
agree that about 150 acres that's south of the existing Makena Golf Course should be
some sort of preserve. It's sensitive land, it's right across from either the existing beach
or Ahihi Kinau, so anything that happens on that land kind of affects, and it's surrounded
by other State lands and lands that are going to be protected. So all the maps agree on
that and we hope you will support that. All the maps would also agree that there is no
need for additional urbanization above the proposed urban growth boundary in Makena.
They have plenty of land to develop, in fact they're in receivership now and we don't
even know what is going to happen there, but, you know, eventually something will
happen, but there's, there's plenty of land to make it happen. But I want to explain the
GPAC version of the map and, and what the Planning Commission, why they didn't
come to a decision, and that is because
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. deNAIE: --folks really would like our policies and our maps to match. Our policies say we
want to respect our host culture, we want to leave important historical areas to learn from
for future generations, and we have an area there that was left out of the GPAC map that
has a huge concentration of cultural sites. And this is where I'll pass you maps so you
can look at it in your leisure, but we have a chance here since Makena Resort is changing
around, to send a message. Not that there should be no development in Makena Resort,
but that it should be compacted. And this is just one thing I would like this Council to
consider. There's a reason that you have three different versions of this map, two of
which do not support any development in the area immediately behind the State park, and
that's because it is a very, very special area that wasn't known 40 years ago. It just
wasn't known. People did the best they could. So good luck on your mission and thank
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you, and I'll be turning in some maps and things you can look at in your deliberations.
Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions? Okay. Seeing
none, Bud, is it Pikrone? Followed by Merry Stuartz, Stutz. I'm sorry.
MR. PIKRONE: Good evening, Members. My name is Bud Pikrone, and I, tonight I'm
representing Wailea Resort Association and the Wailea Community Association. The
GPAC has spent a lot of time on this, working out this document, a general document that
was supposed to be a representation of everyone and a general guide for the future of our
island. There are a couple of things I just wanted to comment on and I heard a few things
that made me think of a couple others. So bare with me here. It is commonly known that
the visitor industry has been the economic engine for this island community for decades
and will likely continue to be for many more decades as the island tries to diversify. It
will not happen overnight, we know that, and probably not in at least my lifetime. So we
must show support for this industry so that we may be able to transition in other
industries in the future without the island's economy suffering from a lack of balance in
planning. So why I don't know this wasn't done earlier but the, the industry must, you
must speak to the industry now. Do not leave this until the community plan stage as I
actually believe that some of the outside, somebody outside the industry who may be
trying to protect the industry from itself will take the document as law and continue to
weaken the industry, and therefore the economy necessary to support other new
industries that we hope come forward in the future. There were a couple of other things I
wanted to talk about more for South Maui. Everybody talks about the affordable housing
and affordable housing and putting it in specific areas close to work, close to jobs, close
to resorts, wherever people may be working. And it made me recall years ago when I
first came to the island I was working at Kaanapali Beach Hotel. And I was amazed, I
was driving myself from Kihei, long way but it was a beautiful drive, but I was amazed at
how many people not only lived in Wailuku, Kahului, but Upcountry and Pukalani,
Makawao, and Kula and drove all the way. And I kept saying to them, why don't you
live closer to work? You've been here 20 years. They said, we like it there. So we
shouldn't be forcing people to live in a specific area. We've heard people talk about
building towns and centers. That's the way to do it, but we don't have that right now.
We have people spread out. So let's not try and force that issue. Seeing George Rixey
up here reminded me that about, oh, five, six years ago, I think it was, when you talk
about planning, the South Maui . . .(change tape, start 2A). . . Coalition and community
associations came up with a plan to build a road mauka of Piilani Highway. The reason
was at that time I don't believe the highway had been widened yet. There was even talk
of widening South Maui Road, to four lanes, or South Kihei Road. Sorry. So we thought
this would be
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
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MR. PIKRONE: --a good idea as a community It would have been from Makena, connect to
the new road that was being planned, Mokulele, around the pond and connect to Maalaea.
The reason, North Kihei Road then could be turned into a park. This would now allow
access, emergency access. Look what's happening in South Maui right now with
construction on both roads at the same time. Imagine a disaster where South Maui Road
or South Kihei Road gets closed. It's going to be impossible for people in South Maui,
when you're looking at Makena, that work and live in Makena, they'll never get out of
there. So we need to plan. That got tossed out because a former Planning Director said, I
won't sign off because if you build that road somebody's going to come along and build
homes along it.
MR. RAATZ: Four minutes.
MR. PIKRONE: That's not planning. That's not planning. So we must think of these things
ahead of time. Infrastructure's going to be important before we do anything. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Bud. Any questions, Members? Okay.
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Bud. Can you just further expound on that
statement you made with regards that the former Planning Director threw that suggestion
out for the road? When, when did that occur, if you could refresh our memories?
MR. PIKRONE: I, I believe this was five or six years ago. Matter of fact, Mike, you were a part
of those meetings I believe. We had meetings with, again, all of the community
associations. Members, Matt(?) came up with this plan. George drew up some beautiful
plans, it was going to be like a boulevard. We went to the, the State. The State said, love
it, we'll get it on the STIP, but you need to get the County to back it. We came to the
County. The only one who didn't back it was the former Planning Director, who said no
I won't do it because if you build it, and he used a specific name I won't use, but he used
a specific name will come along and build homes along it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I have a question.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Another question, Bud.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good evening, Bud. You know, very interestingly that
you, you know, brought up the subject about affordable housing, and, you know, I
remember years back, we were trying to do that in regards to having affordable, if the
project was in Kihei that we would build 50 percent of the housing in Kihei and the other
50 percent elsewhere. Meaning exactly what you said, people live in Kahului, Wailuku,
Upcountry; they don't want to live here, so why, why don't we provide affordable
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housing in those areas. So right now we, we reviewing the workforce housing policy,
and that's one item that we're going to be talking about, having a certain percentage
outside of the community planned area for affordable housing.
MR. PIKRONE: Great.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. PIKRONE: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Bud. Merry Sturtz, followed by
Karlynn Fukuda.
MS. STURTZ: Mr. Chairman, Council Members, my name is Merry Sturtz. And I'm here
speaking on behalf of myself and my late husband Ron Sturtz. Many of you knew Ron as
a dedicated environmentalist devoted to Maui, and as a man of integrity. But you may
not know that he was one of the original partners in developing Piiholo South, the land
that is before you to be included in the Makawao growth boundary. Ron loved the
concept of thriving communities where people shared their strength and talents and took
care of each other in need. And whenever we visited the mainland, Ron never missed an
opportunity for us to visit retirement communities, active living communities, co-housing
and other projects. He wanted to bring new housing opportunities to Maui that met the
human needs and protected the environment. And he also took very seriously our
responsibility to our elders and I, too, am one of those silver haired now slipping into
senior citizenry. But after my father died we felt we were very fortunate. We were able
to take care of my mother and help her to maintain an active life surrounded by her
friends with access to activity and a vibrant lifestyle that she needed. When we were no
longer able to care for her in her home, we were again happy and felt very privileged to
be able to bring her into our home, and she lived with us for eight years and before she
passed away in our home in Kihei. Not every family can absorb an elder into their home.
It's a huge commitment. We all have experience with this. And not every elder has
family nearby that they can lean on in their later years. And so it falls to the greater
ohana, the community, to the County to plan and provide for seniors, and to help seniors
continue to be vital contributors to life. Many communities around our country thrive
because of the hours of expertise and wisdom that seniors share with community. The
Piiholo South project was part of Ron's vision for Maui, and together with Zach Franks
and Cindy Warner, he sees the coming together. I know he sees the coming together of
affordability and independent housing as a wonderful contribution to life in Makawao
and on the entire island. In a County where the wait list is seven years for independent
housing for seniors, the Piiholo South senior community offers responsible and visionary
development that will enhance the lives of seniors and the vibrancy of our community I
urge you to include Piiholo South in the Urban Growth Boundary of Makawao. Thank
you.
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CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you, Merry. Members, any questions? Seeing none,
thank you. Karlynn Fukuda, followed by Mike Moran.
MS. FUKUDA: Good evening, Chair and Members of the Council. My name is
Karlynn Fukuda of Munekiyo & Hiraga, Inc., and I am here speaking tonight on behalf of
Haleakala Ranch and Kaonoulu Ranch. Kaonoulu Ranch and Haleakala Ranch would
like to express their support for the Planning Director's and the Maui Planning
Commission's proposed urban growth boundaries in the North Kihei area. Since the
Focus Maui Nui community visioning efforts in 2003 identified North Kihei as a
desirable community growth area, the kamaaina companies Haleakala Ranch and
Kaonoulu Ranch have been working together on a collaborative regional master plan for
their contiguous lands in North Kihei. Consistent with the Focus Maui Nui vision of
creating responsible, self-sufficient communities and environmentally sound economic
development, the North Kihei project is intended to provide residential, commercial,
parks and open spaces as well as public uses for the unique needs of our Maui
community The ranches first presented the conceptual North Kihei master plan to the
GPAC in May 2007 and over the next 18 months testimony was also provided throughout
the GPAC review of the draft Maui Island Plan, including a presentation before the
GPAC and the submittal of a landowner concern form. The Maui Planning Commission
began the review of the draft Maui Island Plan in the Spring of last year. And the ranches
again presented their conceptual North Kihei master plan at stakeholder meetings in July
2009, and provided additional testimony over the following months. The ranches'
approach to the North Kihei master plan as a smart growth planning effort designed in
accordance with the principle of live, work, play and learn, as well as the, with the
planning policies identified in the Maui Island Plan. . . . (clears throat). . . Excuse me. A
key component of the North Kihei community is the future Kihei High School currently
in the planning phase with the State Department of Education. Surrounding the school
are proposed single family, multi-family and mixed use residential neighborhoods and
mauka village centers which will provide residents with opportunities for work and play.
Recognizing the North Kihei master plan as a comprehensive regional planning effort,
the ranches have been communicating with neighboring landowners A&B and the Maui
Research and Technology Park. The coordination between these landowners presents an
opportunity to ensure that major infrastructure including roads, water, sewer, and utility
connections are planned comprehensively and can be, can be implemented in a
coordinated and phased manner With the adoption of the Maui Island Plan directed
growth strategy for North Kihei, the conceptual vision for North Kihei will include
engaging the South Maui community in the planning for their community Like the Maui
Island Plan, the North Kihei Master Plan outlines a long range planning vision for at least
20 years into the future. In this regard we look forward to continuing to work with the
Council and the Planning Department on the County's General Plan update. We thank
you for your time and consideration.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Karlynn. Members, questions? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you. Mike Moran, followed by Robin Newbold.
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MR. MORAN: . . . (Clears throat). . . Excuse me. Good, good evening, Members. First I'd like
to thank you for coming out to the community this evening, this affords a nice
opportunity for most folks who cannot get to, to meetings during the day to have a say,
and also acknowledgment to the Planning Department, the good gentlemen at the
Planning Department for being here this evening. I'll try and be brief. I'm asking you to
not permit the 1,100 unit project at Maalaea Mauka. I, you certainly know as well as all
of us do who live here, and, and, and frequent the area. Two considerations, one is the
traffic consideration. To put 1,100 homes in that area, we all know the situation with the
Pali. There's no way to increase... State Department of Transportation tells us they have
no plans whatsoever to do anything with the road there. Their long-term plan is the
Kihei-Upcountry road which is at least a decade away. North Kihei Road, no plans for
expansion. So to put whatever this ends up with 3,000 more people out in this area, to
have to go to schools, have to go to jobs with no road structure. However, my main
concern is, is my passion, is our nearshore waters and our reef. We've seen what has
happened in the Maalaea area over the years. With the original building of the condos
and no sewage structure there we have, you know, the cesspools, this type of thing
because we have no sewage there. We saw what happened when construction was done
not too long ago with the Ocean Center being built, further destroying the reef. Maalaea
reef is barely hanging on. It's almost like a, a boxer who's just about ready to collapse.
One more punch and, and he's gone, and that's that reef there. You know our, I've
learned as I've lived here from the good folks about the native culture and how important
the, the ocean is to the native culture and yet I don't see it happening. I just see it getting
deteriorated further and further and this looks just like one more, one more step. You've
heard from very qualified individuals tonight and I see some more here who will give you
professional opinions and facts and figures. I'm just a guy who lives here and loves that
ocean and tries to get in it every day, and I just see this as one more blow to the well, well
being of our reefs and the ocean. Thank you very much for being here tonight. Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Mike. Members, any questions? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you. Robin Newbold, followed by Anita Winther, [sic] Winter [sic] --yeah
Winter [sic].
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Wintner.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Wintner. I'm sorry.
MS. NEWBOLD: Thank you very much for letting me speak. My name is Robin Newbold, I'm
the Chair of the Maui Nui Marine Resource Council. I'm speaking tonight on behalf of
the Clean Water Committee, of that Council. We want to express our support for Maui
County's Planning Department, Department's Director not to recommend the
development at Maalaea Mauka mostly because of the sewage treatment plant and the
injection wells that will go along with that project. Maalaea Bay, as Mike Moran was
just saying, has been seriously degraded by wastewater injected by the Maalaea wells
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from the condos there and also by the sediment flow that went in during the construction
of the Maui Ocean Center. It just happened that the construction, you know, occurred
during a year of really heavy rains. That sediment flowed out onto the reef and basically
buried that reef. The reef is, like I say, in very compromised position now, and we're
really concerned that if there's any hope for recovery that adding more injection wells for
1,100 new homes, and more construction in this low-lying area, will certainly just, you
know, finish off the reef. Building a sewage treatment plant in a flood plain seems to me
to be totally irresponsible anyway, not just because of our marine resources, but because
of all the residents that would be living in that area. I mean certainly we're all really
familiar with what happened in New Orleans with Hurricane Katrina, we know what
happened in Indonesia with the tsunami, and we know what's happened recently in Haiti.
And allowing the building of more residences in this low-lying area that we know is a
flood plain, seems to be like I say irresponsible and foolish. Equally foolish I think
would be adding two more injection wells to pump excess wastewater during times of
heavy rains. It's been proven; we have all the documentation on this as scientific proof,
that the wastewater, the, the waste from wastewater from the injection wells carries lots
of nitrates with it, heavy amounts of nitrates, and that these high levels of nitrates spur the
growth of the limu, the algae, and that the reefs then get smothered and the reefs die.
And we all know how important our reefs are to both Maui's cultural, culture, to our
history, to the people who live here and of course to our economy because of their effect
on attracting tourist. So I would ask you to support the GPAC's decision not to build in
this area, that of the Planning Department, the Maui County Planning Department, and
our Director of, to not build, to not allow any more building in this area. So I say please
support those decisions that have already been made by people who've put a lot of time
and thought into this. And I also ask -MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. NEWBOLD: --that you, that you support the phasing out of injection wells as our Mayor
recommended, not just for this project. Certainly on an island where water is so scarce,
recycling water, reusing the water and recycling it is smarter than having it flow out on to
the reefs. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you, Robin.
MS. NEWBOLD: Any questions?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any, any questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you. Anita Wintner. I'm sorry.
MS. WINTNER: Anita Wintner, Kihei. Well, I think that Mike Moran and Robin said pretty
much everything that I was going to say. I'm very, very much in favor of affordable
housing building and I really do hope that the construction people, you know, get jobs.
My main concern about the Maalaea Mauka project is once again the injection wells.
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I've been to several of the meetings that DLNR has had, giving the scientific research of
Maalaea Bay, it has shown, with their research that the injection wells killed many, you
know, up to 90 percent of Maalaea Bay. And it's because like, like Robin was saying,
the nitrates in the...feeds the limu. And the reefs are so important to the people that live
in Hawaii, that to add more injection wells without requiring 100 percent of that water to
be reused and recycled--if you can do that, then I would be in, in favor of the project. But
I think the, the sewage treatment plant, if, if another one is going to be built, it, the water
should not go into the ocean. It needs to be reused for the, you've got the golf courses
there, you've got the sugar cane fields there. If you're going to be, you know, making
new roads and all that, that would be the time to put in the lines to reuse the water. And
once again the gentleman there who was talking about fast track, well, GPAC and the
planner, Planning Director's report did not really support this and so there's probably
some reason they did not support this project. And as Robin was saying, that as far as I
understand it looking at the plan, it looks like the sewage treatment plant is in the flood
zone, very, very close to the ocean, which, you know, doesn't make much sense. But
anyway if you do approve this project, I, I hope that, you know, it's done, it's done right.
Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Anita. Members, any questions? Okay.
Daniel Kanahele, followed by David Mogilefsky.
MR. KANAHELE: Aloha kakou.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. KANAHELE: My name is Daniel Kanahele, I am a resident of South Maui. Mahalo for
coming out to this moku, to meet with the residents of this area, and give us the
opportunity to share our manao at such a convenient time and convenient place. I'd like
to begin by sharing the same manao that I shared with the Planning Commission this past
summer. And I'm going to quote an excerpt taken from the 1970 Kihei General Plan, the
first civic plans for Kihei, maybe for Maui. And it comes from the overview of that plan
and begin quote, adjoining Wailea is Makena, once a thriving Hawaiian community, now
largely vacant. The plan would place strict developmental controls in Makena with
emphasis on conservation of Makena's historic resources. The planners believe that
Makena has a tremendous value to the planning region, if emphasis is placed on
conservation and the prevention of unwanted development, so that when maximum
urbanization occurs in the planning area, Makena will remain as it is now, a quiet place of
natural beauty and historic interest, end quote. You know, your planning forefathers
envisioned a time when a tsunami of development would cover South Maui and Maui
would, South Maui would become a population center. As part of their planning they
also understood it was very important for, for people to have a place to live and a place to
work. But equally as important they also understood that people need places to get away
where they can rejuvenate their, their body, minds and spirit; where they can reconnect
with nature; where they can become kamaaina acquainted with the host culture, the
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Hawaiian culture. And so they saw Makena as one of the places that would fulfill this
role of being a place of quiet, of natural beauty and historic interest. I believe that this
vision for Makena still holds water today. And that there is still a window of opportunity
to make, help Makena actualize its, its true potential as a place of, as a cultural resource
and as a natural resource not only for the people of South Maui but for all of Hawaii.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. KANAHELE: Of, of all the proposed urban growth boundaries that I see on the table, the
one in my opinion that comes closest to supporting this vision that the planning
forefathers had in 1970 is the urban growth boundaries proposed for Makena by the
General Plan Advisory Committee. So I hope that you'll really scrutinize that proposal.
And I hope you'll really ask the members why they did what they did, why they aligned
the urban growth boundaries the way they did in Makena, and, and get behind that and
that understanding. I'd just like to conclude that by saying that my earliest memories of,
of South Maui go back to the 1960s and when I think about what I remember then and
what I see now, it's just amazing how much this place has changed. And I would say that
90 percent of everything we see today in South Maui -CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Four minutes.
MR. KANAHELE: --did not exist 40 years ago. So I'm very curious to see how we and you as
a community malama this area. Mahalo.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Daniel. Members, any questions? Okay.
Thank you. David Mogilefsky, followed by Robin Knox.
MR. MOGILEFSKY: Thank you. Good evening. I just got back from the mainland this
morning. Did you know you could leave Oakland at 7:45 and be on Maui at 11 o'clock?
It's almost amazing. Anyway, I had a window seat and there was a couple next to me
from El Cerrito, that's over by Berkeley, and they were coming over on vacation. And
when I told the lady I was a Maui resident, without any, without any prompting at all, she
said is Maui getting more crowded all the time? It was either her first or second question.
And I said, well, not right now because of the recession and a lot of people are out of
work because there's very little construction going on. And she said they had visited
several times before but they vowed never to come here again because it had become too
crowded. And the only reason they were coming back now, today, is because they got
such a good deal on the flight. And so I said, well, we're in a real predicament because
starting in the '60s, a lot of people became dependant on construction work to earn a
living, and now there's tremendous pressure to just keep on building continuously just so
people can earn a living. And she just kind of shook her head and acknowledged it and
didn't really have any reply, and anyway, so much for the plane ride. But everyone
knows that when the recession is over, overdevelopment is going to back on our table,
our plate, as our biggest issue. And whether it takes 20 years or 50 years or 200 years,
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continuous construction will eventually consume all of the private land on Maui. We'll
leave future generations with something more like Oahu than Maui. Now while the
whole GPAC process was going on, the Wailea 670 project and the Makena Resort
projects came up. And I'm sure you all remember in Council Chambers how the right
half of the room was filled with construction people and the left half of the room with
preservation people, and they didn't even really mix too much. And a lot of them had tshirts, promoting projects or opposing projects. That's really, really terrible situation for
a small community to be in. And, you know, the construction people love Maui as much
as anyone. But they never want to run out of work, and who can blame them. That's all
they've got to put food on the table and pay the rent. They don't want their kids and
grandkids to run out of construction work either, but if no one does anything about
construction dependence, the urban growth boundaries coming up in the new General
Plan will be under constant pressure to be expanded in some future General Plan. So I
want to suggest that we make-MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. MOGILEFSKY: --I want to suggest that we make it part of the General Plan that the
resources and energy that went into GPAC should now be redirected into a smaller but
permanent construction dependence advisory committee. Perhaps with enough time and
effort the group can come up with solutions to channel future generations away from land
development construction and into higher education, alternative energy work, medical
professions, law enforcement, teaching, and maybe such a group could come up with
ways to provide incentives for entrepreneurs to create non-construction jobs. Now I
don't want to pretend to know all the answers. Obviously I'd, I'd be sitting up there I
guess instead of standing up here. But I think a permanent committee might be able to
solve this over a period of time, not easy. But I'd like to suggest that, and I'd like to see
it right in the plan. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, David. Members, any questions? Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, David. You know, you and I have had
many heartfelt conversations about this issue.
MR. MOGILEFSKY: And you knew just what I was going to say.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right. But I want to tell you something that you don't know.
MR. MOGILEFSKY: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: There is the rest of the story.
MR. MOGILEFSKY: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: My journeyman carpenter son is now a struggling student at
MCC. He's getting a different career. He has come to the realization that it's not the
way it was, and it really wasn't such a good idea, and it's not, you know, it's not
sustainable. And so he's at MCC struggling as a student, used to earn $95,000 a year as
a, in construction. So, you know, there may be a natural thing happening here. And
people who were making a lot of money and have been unemployed now for over a year,
like he's been, are beginning to realize that maybe that's not a sustainable thing. So don't
despair.
MR. MOGILEFSKY: Well, I think that's great, Gladys, but, you know, MCC has pretty limited
courses in four year degrees and things that people, you know, really need.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, it's...
MR. MOGILEFSKY: But, you know, when he gets through there, he can go on to something
that's higher.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But, you know, it, it is something for us to think about, and
we've always said that, you know, we needed better educational opportunities for our
kids here, and this may just be the impetus. So not a bad idea. Thank you.
MR. MOGILEFSKY: Thank you. I think the important thing is, is to not ignore this
predicament, but to do something about it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Yes.
MR. MOGILEFSKY: Thank you. Any other questions?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, David. We will be calling you on that
committee that is going to be set up soon.
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. MOGILEFSKY: I will right here and now volunteer for that. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. Robin Knox, followed by
Teri Leonard.
MS. KNOX: Aloha, Committee Members. My name is Robin Knox, and I am an environmental
scientist. I think I've spoken with most of you before. I have 20 years, 27 years
experience in water quality management and I've, during that time, been both a regulator
and a consultant to the regulated industry, as well as being a research scientist studying
ecosystems scale impacts of pollution. I'm currently working with the University of
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Hawaii doing research here on Maui of those types of land-based pollution impacts and I
work with a lot of the guys on . . . (change tape, start 2B). . . the island like DIRE and
South Maui Sustainability and Maui Nui Marine Resource Council. But I'm here
speaking for myself tonight because I want to share with you something from my
personal experience relating to this. I want to support the Planning Director's decision
not to allow the 1,100 unit housing project at Maalaea. And I understand that this
Council may be some of the only chance for review that that fast track project will have.
I really respect Mr. Spencer and what he does for our community and the need for
affordable housing, but I think that there are important questions that need to be asked
and answered. And I want to particularly alert you to something that I see as a problem,
which is this proliferation that seems to be happening of the need for small sewage
treatment units on each development because we cannot provide regional infrastructure.
And I will just share with you that in my hometown 20 years ago it was just about this
situation. We had 150,000 people; we had a great need for housing, need for economic
growth and a construction industry. The council did the same thing that's tending to
happen here. They allowed even though the county, and there it's a parish, but the city
parish could no longer provide sewage treatment, so they let each development build their
own. They ended up with over 147 package treatment plants, some of them up to
1 million gallons per day. So this, these were all located along one river and it ended up
that all the pollution load killed that river. And simultaneously the pollution load of the
continental U.S. was coming down the Mississippi River and was killing the fishery in
the Gulf of Mexico, and all of the coastal development and changes to hydrology, all the
scientist were saying, you know all the lands going to wash away. And everyone ignored
all of this. The council went on their merry way approving things and everybody was
happy for 20 years until there was no fish in the river where people used to catch their
dinner, and these are people that, like here, needed that for food for their families. And
the land literally washed away beneath our feet. Now I see this happening here on Maui.
I see the nutrient loads, I see the dead spots on the reef, I can show you where the effluent
comes out on the reef. I hear people talk about these past sedimentation events and what
has happened. And I see the land washing away here already. Anything in the coastal
zone--or even if you think of it as inland, if it's low, it's going to be in the coastal zone
when sea level rises. So we really need to be cautious about our, our planning and our
environmental approaches and so I hope that you can ask the right questions. What my
hometown ended up entering into a consent decree 20 years
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. KNOX: --later and having to put in 200 miles of sewer main and upgrade 147 plants and
take over all of that mess that had been created by not doing the right thing in the first
place. So I hope that you will support wherever possible regional County-owned
facilities for wastewater treatment. It's an important job and it needs a lot of attention
and funding and support. I think that we should ask the right questions which are, how
much, how much pollution will this create compared to not building it? And thank you
very much for your time.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Robin. Members, questions?
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much for being here. An interesting testimony.
During the last budget process when we were talking about the needs for I think handling
sewage, I believe that it was stated by our Department that the trend was to these smaller
plants. And one of the reasons was to locate them closer to where the sewage is
generated so that the R-1 water can be, you know, put back into the, the development in
close proximity. 'Cause what we have now is we have a regional plant, but it's far away
from everything and so we can't get the water, the R-1 water back to where we can use it,
so we put it in the injection wells. That's the area that we were told was build smaller
plants closer to the development so that the R-1 water can be used by the development
and not have to go into injection wells. So I'm very, you know, interested in what you
said tonight because it presents another side of it.
MS. KNOX: I think there's two aspects there that need to be looked at, one as you said R-1
water. If everybody was treating all of their wastewater to R-1 standards, we would be
fighting over who gets to have it instead of where we're not going to put it. So treatment
is key. So if you're treating to R-1 standards, you have a lot more options. And secondly
if that were a County-run and -owned facility, I think that that is a viable thing and that's
why I said wherever possible, go to regional plants or existing infrastructure. There are
cases where it makes more sense ecologically and environmentally to do a smaller plant,
but I was a permit writer when the foreclosed properties came across my desk at the State
and there was nobody to hold accountable for a wastewater treatment plant when the
developer declares bankruptcy and it's foreclosed on or the homeowner's association
can't keep it up. And I think we've already seen this in Maui County with Molokai
Ranch, what can happen. The same scenario but multiplied many times. So you don't
want your people to end up without sanitation, it's a basic need.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I guess it really depends on the individual situation, but it's, it's
good for us to hear both sides. Thank you very much.
MS. KNOX: You're welcome.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Ms. Knox, for being here.
I'm curious, you know, you said of these 147 treatment plants or so, they all led to one
place, which was to the river.
MS. KNOX: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Was that via injection wells or were there just direct
connections to the river for effluent to be deposited into the river?
MS. KNOX: They were not injection wells. They were direct discharges and typically direct
discharges to surface water are regulated under Clean Water Act, and are subject to more
stringent standards than injection wells would be. And in fact that's some of the recent
developments that you will probably be coming aware of if you're not already, is that the
recent evidence connecting our injections wells here to the surface water impacts may
actually make Maui County injection wells subject to that same stringent level of
permitting. And what that means is that now instead of just worrying about protecting
drinking water or saying what we're using the, the . . .(inaudible). . . technology,
whatever the best is, instead we ask what can, as Ms. Baisa said, what can this particular
place with these particular set of discharges handle? What is the pounds per day of
nitrogen, solids, whatever that it can handle? And then once we know that number we
can go back and say, okay, this development gets this share, this gets this share. This
means they have to do this level of treatment or pollution prevention, or reuse, or
whatever. So it's just to have a plan and an accounting system and that's really what
we're lacking right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you were saying that all of these system, these
treatment plants were all privately owned? None were controlled by the municipality,
parish, or whatever you called it?
MS. KNOX: They were originally, they were owned by the developers and then at some point in
the process, I'm not sure of the reasons, they got turned over to the public entity to
manage, who then had these noncompliant plants on their hands that they had to upgrade.
But the real, Maui County, I mean bottom line, we have sensitive systems here. The stuff
moves fast, it's not thousands of years or hundreds of years. It may be days or hours or
months that these pollutants get out. And our treatment while it's better than average, it's
not good enough for what is really needed here to protect the ecosystems and the public
health. Right now they're not even disinfecting all the effluent that they inject and it
comes out on the reef where people swim, and this is just not good for anybody on Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, the last question I have for you. If we were to make
these regional sewer treatment plants to standard, they're not, they can't be just built,
we'd have to have the say in what is done and how it's done, and we took over
immediately after its completion. Do you feel that way with that oversight would be
better overall?
MS. KNOX: I think if Maui County had a water quality plan that was based on these masses of
pollutants and allocations and that they could manage it that way, that those, that kind of
plant like funding the construction by the development, turning it over to the County, that
could be a good thing if you have that planning component that we're missing. It's, I
don't, I don't object to private developers building wastewater treatment --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. KNOX: --for the residents that are going to live there. I think that's great.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Knox. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you, Robin. Teri Leonard, followed by Maury King.
MS. LEONARD: Thank you, County Council Members and the Planning Department, for
allowing this opportunity to speak. My name is Teri Leonard and I am representing
DIRE (Don't Inject -- Redirect). We are supporting the Planning Director's decision to
recommend against the development of the poorly sited Maalaea Makau [sic] project. I
manage Maui Dreams Dive Company in Kihei and have been employed there as a scuba
instructor for over ten years. I co-Chair the Clean Water Committee for the Maui Nui
Marine Recourses Council Clean Water Committee and Chair the Reef Sustainability
Committee for South Maui Sustainability. Along with many other members of the
community, we are working to expand and support the water quality monitoring efforts of
the Hawaiian Islands Humpback Whale National Marine Sanctuary, and I have been
working with Roland Asakura with the State Department of Health in this area. Through
my work with these groups and programs I've come to understand the threat of point
source pollution, such as the use of injection wells for the disposal of wastewater, that
according to the DLNR and the University of Hawaii is already damaging our nearshore
waters and coral reef systems through the addition of pharmaceuticals, nitrates, nitrites,
nitrogen, biological threats, and numerous as yet unknown contaminates and pollution.
Although much of the wastewater will be reused in this project, these planned injection
wells will be activated at least when heavy rains occur. So they will be used, they are
being planned to be built. We are also concerned about non-point sources of pollution
such as runoff from development in impervious surfaces, which will be created by any
new development in the Maalaea area which has detrimentally occurred in the past. As
experts will offer in their testimony tonight, the Hawaii State Department of Health has
determined that these waters are already impaired and tremendously damaged. Without
the environmental studies of the Maalaea coral reef system and waters which have been
funded but not yet conducted, until the total maximum daily loads of these impaired
waters have been established, we believe the Planning Director has made a wise decision
to recommend to not support the poorly sited development project with its STP and
injection wells. We agree that Maui is desperate for affordable housing; however, if we
continue to mindlessly develop in these damaged fragile areas, the result will be that no
one will be able to live here safely. We are experiencing higher occurrences of MRSA
and staph infections, lower fish counts, and the deterioration of our precious coral reef
system, which in Maalaea Bay is down from approximately 75 percent coral coverage to
8 percent in just a few years. This will continue unchecked until paradise has
disappeared. Again DIRE supports the Planning Director's decision to recommend
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against this poorly sited Maalaea Mauka development project. Thank you very much for
your time.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Teri. Members, any questions? Okay. Seeing
none -MS. LEONARD: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: --thank you. Maury King, followed by Zach Franks.
MR. KING: Hello and thank you all for coming to Kihei, and Planning Department, thanks for
coming to Kihei. My name is Maury King, I'm speaking for myself but as a member of
South Maui Sustainability and DIRE, the don't inject redirect group, that's trying to help
get the injection wells phased out. I have a Maui Island Plan in my head. Admittedly
nebulous, but it includes respect for this beautiful place we call home knowing we must
take care and nurture and not abuse our recourses. In acting that way, I'd like to see the
County powering all the functions it possibly can with renewable energies and doing
everything it can to support people on the island in putting up their own renewable
energy. I'd like to see support of local agriculture, including perhaps special water rates
for home gardening and composting sites on different parts of the island. I'd like to see
us do more for walking and biking paths by way of building complete streets. I'd like to
see us be supportive of local businesses that keep the money flowing on the island. And I
would also like to see us continue the project of phasing out the injection wells and I
hope we can do that by making much better use of our wastewater, treating it better,
making better use of it, and hopefully not adding any new injection wells to the mix,
especially around Maalaea. It's really degraded there and there just aren't any easy
answers to this, but it's just not the best way to get rid of the water close to the shore.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Maury. Members, any questions? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you. Zach Franks, followed by Lesley Ann Bruce.
MR. FRANKS: Good evening, Members of the Council, Planning Committee. Thank you for
hearing me again tonight and good evening, Staff, I admire your long run. It's just not
this one year run with the Council, but years before with GPAC and with Planning
Commission. We all owe you a debt. To deal with the amount of complexity that you
are dealing with and try to bring it all together for our benefit is an admirable thing. The
reason that I am here tonight I think is because of Merry Sturtz, who came from the Bay
Area to speak to the inspiration for Piiholo South, Senior Housing Committee which
came directly from her late husband and my friend Ron Sturtz, and the vision and the
idealism that we continue to carry. It's interesting to me having attended your meetings
in Lahaina, in Haiku, in Pukalani, and now tonight, that nobody with the exception of
Piiholo South has talked about senior housing when the senior, when, when seniors on
this island 20 years ago were 10,000 in number and 20 years from now will be 30,000 in
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number, when the proportion will go from 10 percent of our population to approximately
18 percent of our population. Nobody is talking about where are we going to live.
Nearly every one of us in 15 or 20 years will be eligible for the community Piiholo South
that we're talking about. And we should have other communities such as the one that
we're talking about. So I'm here to ask you to consider us as proposing to you not just
one community but a model for a community, and the great thing about this is, I've been
talking to you about what I consider to be a popular need on a populist issue. That's
something we can understand from a political point of view, but from a technical point of
view I haven't really understood this very well. And I finally sat down yesterday and I
read all 700 pages of the Maui Island Plan or whatever number it is. And I read the
Appendix B and I read the policy, and I was very impressed with it and what I, what I,
what I saw was very exciting for me because on page after page there were things that
apply directly to the development that we, that we propose. And it mystified me almost
why people, why the Planning staff didn't come to me and say, yes we recognize that
your development is right on the contiguous to the growth boundary of Makawao and we
want to get you involved directly into, and we want to bring you into the urban growth
boundary. So my, my particular reason for talking to you tonight is not to say that I have
to
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. FRANKS: --or that we have to talk more about the need for senior housing. Everybody in
this room recognizes that, just look around at our audience, know that we really need to
talk about is the, is, is the plan itself and how to fit in plans like Piiholo South, not only in
Makawao but around this entire island. So thank you very much once again. I won't
bother you in Hana, I promise.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Zach. Members, do you have questions? Okay.
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think you should go with us to Hana.
MR. FRANKS: Will you drive?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Why, why would you want--I'm not driving, Mr. Victorino is.
. . . (chuckle). . . But he's offered you a seat, too.
MR. FRANKS: Okay. I might do it then.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But, anyway, I was asked a question today that I couldn't
answer.
MR. FRANKS: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And this was about Piiholo South and I was asked in the case of
the Hale Mahaolu housing that you're mentioning as a part of that development-MR. FRANKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --how firm is that? And number two, would it be like the other
Hale Mahaolu things that have been built that they, Hale Mahaolu, would build the
houses or are you going to build them?
MR. FRANKS: Okay. We are meeting with the Board of Directors of Hale Mahaolu on
Wednesday. We were supposed to meet with them in October, but they had to put us off
because they had some emergency matters. As we've been talking to Roy Katsuda for
probably three years, I would say he's firmly committed to the idea. You know once we
get to the idea and once even the board endorses it, we all have to figure out how to fund
it. I expect that they will do the building, but we are, we are donating the land. We're
donating the ten acres to them so that they can put it down. I don't know of anybody else
on the island who's willing to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's very clear and, you know, obviously they need the land
donation, but then now they all, also have to go out as a nonprofit to find the money to
build it. And so that's an issue. I know they've been having a really tough time in trying
to complete Kihei and that's been going on for years and years.
MR. FRANKS: You know, I think that this is a, is a very long-term plan for all of us. Right
now if we were to go out and say we want to actually fund the building of this property,
there's no way that we would get the financing for it. It's, it's just not, it's simply not
available. This is a low margin, low profit, needs driven project and it's going to be
something that comes, you know, as, as, as the County becomes more viable, as the
economy becomes stronger. Then we'll get the funding. But, you know, we're looking
at something that's probably five years off.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I figured it was long term. Thank you very much.
MR. FRANKS: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Members, any other questions. Okay. Seeing none, thank you.
Lesley Ann Bruce, and she is the last person to testify, to have signed up.
MS. BRUCE: Good evening, Planning Committee. I'm honored to be here again and I haven't
missed one of your meetings. I'll see you in Hana. I am a resident of Maui since the
1930s and I have lived in a number of places, and my first concern is the map that you
were distributed last week. It's the transit corridors. It's important that these
right-of-ways be acquired now. The GPAC map which is the colorful one that's
larger--and the one I gave you, it's, it's not colored it, it was distributed at the last
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meeting, the big one. This is the small version I'm giving you today, so that we can look
at it. It has many more hubs than the Department plan, and it goes more places than the
Department Plan, and it's important that we acquire the land now, it will never be
cheaper, so that we can look to the future. One of the possibilities for these transit
corridors discussed in the past was to have an elevated transit system. Under the
elevation we could have community gardens, equestrian trails. We could have walking
trails, we could have hiking trails and we could have bicycle trails, so that it would be
transit and exercise and good health, and food. So the only other thing I have to mention
this evening which I have discussed before were the core values. I want the last core
value on your list copying the GPAC recommendation. And one of the reasons I am
interested in that is because, in 1933 the plantation built a house for my parents at the top
of Waiko Road. And if you look at the accompanying map which I put a little green
mark around that lot, it's surrounded by land court awards, and those people that lived
there when I was a child had running water and taro patches and now there are quitclaim
deeds for those persons, and I think some of these land issues need to be resolved. Thank
you.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you, Lesley Ann. Members, questions? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you. Hold on. The next testifier Tom Blackburn-Rodriquez.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Good evening, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council,
and Members of the Planning Department. I am going to deliver the greenest testimony
this evening, using no paper. Ha! Here we go, alright. You know the, I've had the
opportunity to observe the development of the Maui Island Plan almost from its inception
in sitting through nearly every GPAC meeting. And I commend those people who served
with me in the trenches and they deserve a lot of respect. But I would like to urge the
Committee to keep in mind a few principles as they review their decisions, and I will not
presume to tell you what to decide. But I will ask you to consider a few ideas in your
decision-making process. Number one, we've gone through an extensive democratic
citizen-based grassroots planning process through the GPAC, which went on for a year
longer than it was supposed to. You could actually begin to think of this as Maui
County's precursor to national healthcare reform. It's lasted so long and gotten so big
and so complicated and so distant as it's moved in the bureaucracy. I think we should be
very careful to remember to listen to what your GPAC said, what your Planning
Commission said and not to get enthralled by professional declarations about what must,
or must not be. I really don't think the Council should be in the business, if I might say
so, of seeding authority to unelected bureaucracies who disappear with the
Administration. Secondly, there's no job analysis as I'm aware of. How many jobs will
this plan create? And if it won't create any jobs, why the heck are we doing it? How
many jobs? Where's the job analysis? How many jobs will be gained? How many lost?
How many new County positions will be required as a result of this plan? And how will
they be paid for? Where is the budget that tells you how much it will cost to implement
this plan? When my conservative friends criticize me, they always say what will it cost,
Tom? And so I say, what will it cost? And finally, housing, housing is critical,
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affordable housing is critical. It is tied to the recovery of the nation. We all know this
country will not recover until its housing industry recovers. Maui County will not
recover until its housing industry recovers. So I would urge you to keep the principle of
affordable housing forthright and square in front of all your thinking. Think about jobs
for local people. And ask yourself how many jobs? How strong will we make our
economy so that people will be able to work and stay here and raise their families and be
with their grandchildren? I thank you for the opportunity to speak. I urge you to listen to
your constituents as you have tonight. And I thank you for being here this evening and
for participating in this exercise. Mahalo.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you, Tom. Question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. First of all, Tom, thank you
for being here.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Secondly, I think you brought one of my biggest bugaboos
about this whole plan, is what will it cost? You know, they're the everyday people out
there that work, my family, people I grew up with that you know and I know can't be
here tonight because they still working. That's the real people. I'll stand up anytime to
anybody about that, anybody. And I understand that. And thank you for bringing that
up.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Because that's one of the biggest bugaboos in this thing.
Job creation, you know, thank you. That I haven't even thought about the job creation or
the job loss. I was looking what will it cost this County and who's going to pay for it?
We'll build senior housing, but if there's nobody to take care of the seniors, what do we
got? Okay. And the last thing is, thank you, affordable housing. The lady just brought
that picture of that plantation house for two point, I'll read it off right here, and I know
exactly where this house is, I spent many a time up there in my younger years, and it was
owned and is being sold by the Piltz family. I know the family that owns it. I think it
was 2.94 million, I can't find, oh here, here it is. Two, two million...oh, no, it's
appraised at 1.5 million, I think was two million nine hundred some...oh, here it is--thank
you--$2,495,000, and what they give you is 19 acres with it too.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: I'd have to be a major league baseball player to afford
. . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I know only one guy I know in my family that could
afford, 'cause I sure as hell couldn't. But all joking aside that's not, you know, this is
not, this is the real world. And I said at the meeting just recently that our, our, our, our,
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our dream of the affordable home and living the dream of owning a home on Maui has
become a nightmare. And I think you agree with that.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And we've got to make things, and this plan has to reflect
that. So thank you, Tom, for bringing something that really, many of us I think are
grappling with right now. We don't hear enough of it because we're not hearing from the
people, but when I'm out there, I'm talking to the everyday people--those people who are
waitress and waiters and hotel workers and, and construction and whoever they might be,
the everyday blue collar. That's what they're asking. What is this going to cost? And
how are we going to do it? And how am I going to survive in that environment?
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: It's a complicated document and probably one of the things
that can guide you best are to look at the GPAC votes on different projects and plans and
policies, and also the Planning Commission and that may provide a guide for your
decision making, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Tom. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other questions, Members? Okay. Thank you,
Tom.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Tom is the last person who has signed up to testify. Is there
anyone here who has not signed and would like to testify? And then would you please
come to the mic. And then after completing your testimony, then if you would sign one
of our forms. Okay. Mahalo. State your name and who you represent.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Kimokeo Kapahulehua.
I just wanted to come here before you to again to reiterate what Tom said. The Mayor
and Council, you had appoint 25 guys to be on the GPAC Committee, these guys work
really hard hours, really, really hard hours. And they come from all different parts of the
island. They represent all different people. These guys really, really work hard. And
you need to listen to the GPAC Committee. Okay. So we, now we get the GPAC
Committee, and then we get the Planning Commission, we get the Planning Department,
and now we get you. Yeah. In the GPAC Committee, that was the people speaking.
And there were other people came from the community all the time, they had many,
many meetings. So, me, I want to tell you guys, you need to support the GPAC
Committee. You need to support what they brought forward to you guys. We no can
have these guys come out and spend all these hours, then everyone start whacking them
off the fence. You cannot do that. You've got to support the GPAC Committee. They
went every place in the community and there was many meetings. I cannot tell you how
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many hours and how many meetings, you know. So I come here tonight to tell you
please support the GPAC Committee recommendation for this plan. Let's get this plan to
work. Yeah. And mostly what they, what they was talking about tonight. Get the plan
so we can get plenty people back to work. We want jobs. Yeah. And all the, all the
demands that we make going cost us money. . . .(change tape, start 3A). . . We don't
know where we going get the money so we gotta start going to work to get the money.
So let's take the GPAC Committee recommendation and get going. I know you have one
more meeting in Hana and you have another procedure. Yeah. In this Planning
Committee get everything, get everything what we asked about. We asked about our
cultural preservation plan, we asked about archeological sites, we asked about trails, we
asked about bicycle, we asked about town. They put everything in there, your long range
people was in there, everybody. Yeah. So we need to come to some kind of conclusion.
But my conclusion for you guys and my recommendation, you appointed these guys, the
Mayor appointed these guys, and we went out and support these guys. So let's take the
GPAC Committee recommendation. Mahalo.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Mahalo, Kimokeo. Members, any questions? Okay. Seeing
none, is there anyone else here that would like to testify? Okay. Seeing none, then if
there is no objections, Members, the Chair will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. At this time the Chair will take a
five-minute recess, and what we would like is for the Planning Department to setup their
presentation and give us a five-minute break. Okay. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

8:10 p.m.

RECONVENE: 8:15 p.m.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . (gavel). . . Okay. At this time the Chair would like to turn
over the presentation to the Planning Department and Mr. David Michaelson to give you
an update on the Kihei portion of the community plan. So, Mr. Michaelson.
MR. MICHAELSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. First of all, thank you all so much for coming
out. After being involved in a process for this long, nearly five years, it's nice to hear
that the community is still involved and engaged and I appreciate all your comments. My
name is Dave Michaelson, I'm in the Long Range Planning Division. I'm not the only
one who worked on this, there's a lot of people that deserve a whole lot of credit. One
fellow I would like to acknowledge is Mr. Mark King, he's in the very back. He's a
member of our GIS staff.
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AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MR. MICHAELSON: We absolutely could not have done what we did without Mark's expertise
and his dedication. And I also want to recognize the GPAC Members that are here: Tom
Cook, Lesley Bruce, Lucienne deNaie. They've put in countless hours in this process
and we still get along, which is really impossible to believe.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
MR. MICHAELSON: I'm going to be relatively brief. What I'd like to do is just describe to
you sort of the process that we used to develop these directed growth boundaries. What
issues we identified, when we were on, in South Maui. We've done a lot of workshops
out of here, a lot of chan ettes. I recognize a lot of common faces, Daniel. And thank
you so much for your help. And then talk a little bit about what the boundaries
specifically mean for South Maui, and what the differences were between the GPAC
version, the Planning Commission's recommendations, and the Department's
recommendations. And if you have any questions, I'll hang around a little bit. And then
you could always call my office. We're very easy to find. First of all, this is a theme that
has run through the plan from the get-go, we've heard about it tonight, and it's the
concept of sustainability, and it means a lot things to different people. You hear a lot of
people use it in a lot of different context. But for us as planners what it meant is that this
plan is not for our generation, alright, it's not just for our generation. It's for our kids, it's
for their kids, it's what future generations will see on Maui. And the idea is that there's a
law in planning called the Law of Unintended Consequences. Oftentimes you adopt
policies and if you don't track them over time and shift gears occasionally, sometimes
you will in fact go sideways from this concept. First of all, there's two documents that
are out there and I've heard them both referenced tonight. I want to be clear what they
are. The first document that we released which is on the left, was a statutory
requirement. It essentially included all the recommendations from the General Plan
Advisory Committee, the Planning Commission, the Director's recommendation, the very
original April '08 concept, and it's very thick. But it's a way to track history. The
document on the right, and this is on the web, it's in our office, it's at the libraries, it's
very accessible. It's called the condensed version. It includes all the narrative, all the
background information, and all the maps, and the Director's recommendation. And
that's what Council will be going through. It's a very, it's a very, a, a lot of work went
into this document. And I really encourage you to take a look at it. It's organized like a
book. It has chapters, alright. And these are the elements of the document, and
oftentimes they interface with each other, which is a really important concept, and I'll
talk just briefly about it. You'll notice that it includes elements that go beyond what the
bill required. That was based on the public process. That's based on what we heard,
what the GPAC came up with. And we made it sort of all inclusive as we could. One
thing that's really important is the very bottom box, it's called monitoring and evaluation.
Oftentimes when you develop these plans, you don't have a road map to chart its course.
-
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In other words you don't have a way to see if we're getting where we need to go. It's
based on 36 community indices like affordability, like income, like unemployment.
There's reference to substance abuse. All kinds of things that tie in to see if we're getting
to the future that we've laid out for ourselves. Each element is organized exactly the
same, alright. The first section, as you crack one open, is background information.
Where we've been, where we are, where we're likely to go if we don't shift course. It
has challenges and opportunities, and I'll talk a little bit about what we found for South
Maui, Kihei. What this means is what, what problems are out there and what potential
solutions may we want to consider to solve those? And in some cases we were bold. I'll
be very frank. We, we suggested things that Maui County has never thought of before.
And through GPAC and the Planning Commission, selected a course to meet those.
There's two kinds of maps. The first set of maps is called background maps and these are
like existing conditions maps. It's socio-economic data. It's ecological data, threatened
species, coral reef habitat, existing infrastructure, existing and future transportation plans.
Those provide essentially a way to connect the dots between the challenges and
opportunities and the course we chose in the policies and the action plans. But there also
are policy maps and these are really important. These will be used by staff, by Council,
by yourself, when you look at projects that are being proposed for the future. This is an
example of a, of a way to deal with some of our coral reef issues. And it essentially links
land uses in watersheds and coral reefs that are still sustainable and still have a shot. It's
never been done anywhere else. No other Hawaiian island has done it. We're getting a
lot of attention for it and we hope it works. There's a regional framework to this thing
too, and this is what separates, I think, the old General Plan of 1990, to the General Plan
that we have before Council right now. And that's that we looked at it as an island, right.
We're in a canoe. And at first one of the issues that came out was that to limit
development in East Maui and Northwest Maui, that, that tracked through the whole
public process. That our agricultural resources, particularly, prime ag, ag lands should be
looked at a lot more carefully for future development. That we should direct growth to
where it can be served by infrastructure, it's close to services, water, sewer, roads,
shopping, retail, schools, parks, things like that. And finally that within these urban
boundaries we need to refine how we look at how they should develop. That they should
be mixed use in nature. They should be walkable. All those things that I think you heard
testimony in regards to. And if you had to sort of frame the directed growth, this is kind
of the box I would try to fit it into. There's six principles. One, we live on an island,
right. Our culture is different, our lifestyle is different, and the plan should reflect that.
That we should promote sustainability and we just, we just sort of lived through that sort
of concept. That open space and working ag landscapes can't be separated. They serve a
dual purpose and we should look at that from a land use perspective. That we have some
of the most environmentally sensitive lands on the island, I don't have to explain that to
you, and that should also be sort of at the forefront on how we make decisions. That, that
development should be equitable. In other words we should all share in affordable
housing. We should all share in open space, and we should all share in uses that aren't as
warm and fuzzy as that. Like job creation, like industrial uses, things like that. And
finally, that if we don't link infrastructure planning with this thing, it's all for naught.
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And I think we've made, we've made that mistake in the past and we shouldn't continue
to make it in the future. The highlights directed growth, we'll talk a little bit about that.
Small town and rural character rang through all our public meetings. The idea, keep
country, country. Keep small towns, small towns. Affordable housing, watersheds, and
again Lesley talked a little bit about the transit corridors. There was also a notion, I think
this was Daniel who mentioned this, that almost no place on this island has changed as
much as Kihei. And I'm going to take you through a little historical perspective and kind
of explain why that happened. This was a, these were developed with help from Chris
Hart & Partners, it's a really cool methodology to look at change. This is Kihei in 1933.
It was just a blip. See that little pink right where it says Kihei, that was Kihei. That was
it. 1955, pretty much the same world. A little bit of growth but nothing exponential.
1978, there you go. And that was actually planned. That was not by accident. Daniel
referenced what was called the 701 plan. It was done in 1970, and it laid the ground
work for this linear development pattern that occurred to Kihei. And more importantly it
created sort of mono-zoning. It separated land uses, residential here, commercial here,
retail here and that's why you have the auto dependant environment you have now. And
the plan has a lot of policies about as we grow, particularly in Kihei mauka, that we try to
look at that a little different way. And finally 2004, there you go. There's where you are
now. We did a lot of outreach. We did Focus Maui Nui. We did plan story. We did talk
story. We did a series of design charrettes out here with you folks. And this is kind of
what we heard. This auto dependency, the idea of traffic congestion, lack of mixed use
neighborhoods, which gets back to that sort of monolithic zoning that came out of the 701
plan, and finally the idea of water quality. We heard that wherever we went. We heard it
tonight. And it's reflected in the plan. So what do we do? Well three things, themes that
are in the, the urban growth boundaries and in the policies as well as laying the
groundwork for your community plan is the idea that, we do have to create more diversity
in housing. That's just a given, and that's not just in Kihei, that's island wide. That the
one thing that separates Kihei, I think from any of the other community plans will do, is
you have an incredible opportunity with in-fill and revitalization. Keep in mind this plan
is 22 years out. There are a lot of opportunities in Kihei that will redevelop in the life of
this plan. We should use this plan and the community plan to shape that, instead of
letting someone else shape it for you. And finally that as, as you heard tonight, growth
has got to be efficient, right, we've got to be able to pay for it and it should be cost
effective for taxpayers as well as, as the development community So let's get to the
directed growth. The directed growth was an interesting thing. It, it said that we had to
do two things, urban boundaries and rural boundaries, and we found right away that you
couldn't wedge all of Maui into those two boundaries. So we came up with four different
boundaries. The first was urban towns. And those are easy right, Wailuku, Kahului,
Kihei, Lahaina, but where does Makawao and Paia and Hana and Pukalani fit into that.
So we started with urban boundaries, they were the easiest. It's really a containment
strategy for the most part if you will. And then we came up with what was called a
country town and there's a sheet on the very corner and it's also on the webpage, and I
won't walk you through all the specifics, but you don't treat Wailuku and Kahului like
you treat Makawao and Paia. So there are different policies that go about the unique
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issues that are going to surround the growth of those areas different than what would
happen in urban areas. We also have rural residential and, frankly, a lot of it. And what
we did is we used the old community plan designations to shape those almost completely,
so they were, those were pretty easy to define. And finally, we have these kind of goofy
little places that make Maui, Maui, Keokea, Waiakoa, there's a few other, Haiku town,
and we called them rural service centers and we developed a whole series of policies that
were unique to the issues that are going to be facing those communities. And we're
laying the groundwork for the community plans, and I'm going to talk very briefly about
the differences between these three boundaries for Kihei. And the, and the idea that,
when is it more appropriate to do urban design? Is it at an island level plan or at a
community level plan? And each of the three boundaries have a little different take on
that, but this is what we're setting ourselves up for, to come and actually grind in to
specific land use issues in a much more detailed pace than, than we did on the Maui
Island Plan, which I think is appropriate. You've heard a lot about Kihei mauka, and
what it should look like. For the most part all three boundaries identified Kihei mauka as
the place that's most appropriate for growth. Now what that growth should look like is a
little different between the three. But it's got great topography, there's not that many
development constraints, you're not dealing with a lot of infrastructure constraints, as
opposed to some other places on the island. And it had the potential to create walkable
neighborhoods. Alright. The land mass was big enough to do that. We need some
regional facilities there defined in the plan, North-South Collector Road, Kihei High
School, a regional park, and a transportation corridor. And those are all identified in the
plan. First, and the differences are important. GPAC also got the notion that this place
should be separated. Alright. It shouldn't be one suburban or urban thing. And they
actually defined green belts in their plan. And you'll see that up here on the wall. The
Planning Commission was a little less interested in defining what was inside the
boundary as opposed to the boundary themselves. And that also is reflected in the, in the
Planning Director's recommendation. Idea being that the place to define those
separations and those corridors is really here in a room like this with the community at
the community plan level and not at a Maui Island Plan level. Also there were
preservation areas that are defined in the plan. The first is that beautiful pond system
between Maalaea and North Kihei. We've identified that as a preservation area. And
finally, several people referenced this, the Makena, La Perouse natural area. We've
identified that in the plan, for obvious reasons, one of the most beautiful places on the
island. That concludes my presentation. Please if you have any questions, search me
down. You can reach me in Long Range Planning Division. There's, I'm not the only
planner working on this. There's a lot of people that can answer your questions. But
again thank you so much for coming.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, David, for your presentation. Members, are there
any questions tonight for the Planning Department? Okay. Seeing none, then the Chair
would recommend that we defer this item.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused: JJ)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No objections? Okay. Before we adjourn tonight's meeting, I
want to thank those of you who have come tonight to give us your input on the Maui
Island Plan. We will continue with this community meetings. The next one is scheduled
for Hana, and we'll be at Hana's Helene Hall on Thursday the 28 th at 6:00 p.m. If you
want to join us, please come. If there's no other business at this time, then again thank
you very much. Tonight's meeting is adjourned. Okay. . . . (gavel).. .

ADJOURN: 8:31 p.m.

APPROVED:

SOL P. KAHO'OHALAHALA, Chair
Planning Committee
pc:min:100125 Kihei
-

Transcribed by: Cynthia Los Banos
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